## **Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc.**

Shreveport, Louisiana

December 31, 2023





### ${\bf GOODWILL\ INDUSTRIES\ OF\ NORTH\ LOUISIANA,\ INC.}$

#### SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

#### **AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

	<u>Page</u>
Independent Auditor's Report	1-3
Statement of Financial Position	4-5
Statement of Activities	6
Statement of Functional Expenses	7
Statement of Cash Flows	8
Notes to Financial Statements	9-20
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head	21
OTHER REPORTS	
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	22-23
Schedule of Findings	24
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings	25





# REGIONS TOWER 333 TEXAS STREET, SUITE 1525 I SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 71101 318.429.1525 (P) I 318.429.2124 (F)

The Board of Directors Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc. Shreveport, Louisiana

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

#### **Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements**

#### **Opinion**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc. ("Goodwill"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc. as of December 31, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Basis for Opinion**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

#### Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

WWW.HMVCPA.COM

#### Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
  to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
  procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
  the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
  procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
  opinion on the effectiveness of Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc.'s internal control.
  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

#### Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc.'s 2022 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated June 23, 2023. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

#### **Report on Supplementary Information**

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The supplementary information included on page 22 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the

audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion this information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated June 27, 2024, on our consideration of Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

#### **Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements**

Heard, Mc Elroy ! Westal, LLC

In accordance with the requirements of the Louisiana Legislative Auditor we have issued a report dated June 27, 2024 on the results of our statewide agreed-upon procedures performed in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards applicable to attestation engagements contained in *Government Auditing Standards*. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those control and compliance areas identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's statewide agreed-upon procedures, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance.

Shreveport, Louisiana June 27, 2024

#### STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

#### **AT DECEMBER 31, 2023**

	Without	With		2022
	Donor	Donor	2023	Summary
ASSETS	Restrictions	Restrictions	Total	Total
Current assets:				
Cash	\$ 944,094	\$ 65,292	\$ 1,009,386	\$ 1,717,424
Investments - Note 4	2,756,395	-	2,756,395	845,163
Contributions receivable	480,328	-	480,328	484,648
Trade accounts receivable - net of allowance				
for credit losses of \$0 and \$0	175,524	-	175,524	175,083
Accounts receivable - ERTC - Note 17	-	-	-	919,015
Accounts receivable - other	26,752	-	26,752	35,136
Inventory	226,510	-	226,510	224,366
Prepaid expenses and other	162,976	-	162,976	111,218
Total current assets	4,772,579	65,292	4,837,871	4,512,053
Fixed assets:				
Land, buildings and equipment, at				
cost less accumulated depreciation -				
Notes 5 and 9	9,242,175	-	9,242,175	9,189,802
Other assets:				
Beneficial interest in net assets of				
foundation-Note 15	-	450,721	450,721	428,336
Investment in partnership	55,347	-	55,347	55,479
Lease right-of-use asset	1,603,854	-	1,603,854	1,885,507
Other assets	40,249	_	40,249	40,249
Total assets	\$15,714,204	\$ 516,013	\$16,230,217	\$16,111,426

#### STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

#### **AT DECEMBER 31, 2023**

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS	Withou Donor Restriction		With Donor strictions		2023 Total		2022 Summary Total
Current liabilities:							
Accounts payable	\$ 241,	736	\$ -	\$	241,736	\$	101,671
Sales tax payable	29,7	738	-		29,738		27,758
Accrued payroll and withholdings	165,2	202	-		165,202		127,599
Short-term lease liability-Note 7	536,2	221	-		536,221		538,433
Other payables	131,3	322	-		131,322		119,030
Current portion of long-term debt - Note 9	229,9	909	-		229,909		227,036
Unamortized debt issuance costs-short term	(5,7	702)	-		(5,702)		(5,702)
Total current liabilities	1,328,4	126	-		1,328,426		1,135,825
Long-term liabilities:							
Long-term debt - Note 9	4,253,4	107	-		4,253,407		4,483,316
Long-term lease liability-Note 7	1,078,0	)37	-		1,078,037		1,351,542
Unamortized debt issuance costs-long term	(42,2	287)	-		(42,287)		(47,988)
Total long-term liabilities	5,289,2	L57	 -	_	5,289,157		5,786,870
Total liabilities	6,617,	83	-		6,617,583		6,922,695
Net assets:							
Without donor restrictions	9,096,6	521	-		9,096,621		8,676,853
With donor restrictions			 516,013		516,013	_	511,878
Total net assets	9,096,6	521	 516,013		9,612,634		9,188,731
Total liabilities and net assets	\$15,714,2	204	\$ 516,013	\$	16,230,217	\$	16,111,426

#### **STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES**

#### FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Dubling control of the control of th	Without Donor Restrictions	With Donor Restrictions	2023 Total	2022 Summary Total
Public support and revenues:				
Public support:	¢ 2.156.261	¢	¢ 2.156.261	¢ 2.170.600
Donated goods - Note 10 Workforce Development grants	\$ 3,156,261 2,559,634	ء - 137,000	\$ 3,156,261 2,696,634	\$ 3,170,690 2,210,152
Other contributions	135,634	137,000	135,634	180,060
		-		
Total public support	5,851,529	137,000	5,988,529	5,560,902
Revenues: Sales:				
Sales of goods purchased	75,291	-	75,291	69,302
Less - cost of purchased goods	62,524		62,524	50,812
Gross profit	12,767	-	12,767	18,490
Sales of donated goods	4,872,650	-	4,872,650	4,199,099
Contract services	1,944,907	-	1,944,907	1,521,062
Net investment return - Note 4	260,259	39,403	299,662	(271,541)
Employee Retention Tax Credit - Note 17	-	-	-	919,015
Other miscellaneous net revenue (expense)	(9,312)	-	(9,312)	18,256
Total revenues	7,081,271	39,403	7,120,674	6,404,381
Net assets released from restrictions - Note 3	172,268	(172,268)	-	-
Total public support, revenues,				
and reclassifications	13,105,068	4,135	13,109,203	11,965,283
Expenses:				
Production and sales	6,400,489	-	6,400,489	5,853,571
Workforce development	3,273,117	-	3,273,117	2,469,520
Contract services	1,598,878	-	1,598,878	1,340,942
Management and general	1,412,816		1,412,816	1,253,781
Total expenses	12,685,300		12,685,300	10,917,814
Change in net assets	419,768	4,135	423,903	1,047,469
Net assets, beginning of year	8,676,853	511,878	9,188,731	8,141,262
Net assets, end of year	\$ 9,096,621	\$ 516,013	\$ 9,612,634	\$ 9,188,731

# GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF NORTH LOUISIANA, INC. STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

	Production and Sales	Workforce Development	Contract Services	Management and General	2023 Total	2022 Summary Total
Salaries, taxes and benefits	\$ 3,779,586	\$ 1,890,028	\$ 1,364,754	\$ 711,516	\$ 7,745,884	\$ 6,703,030
Professional fees	61,300	429,726	17,339	458,281	966,646	695,615
Supplies	182,251	103,085	104,843	15,811	405,990	267,239
Telecommunications	63,096	33,562	4,165	7,901	108,724	111,826
Postage and shipping	21,837	1,160	-	981	23,978	2,240
Building leases	444,565	73,773	-	-	518,338	496,058
General and liability insurance	134,279	56,554	3,304	18,501	212,638	177,309
Mortgage interest	157,547	14,166	-	-	171,713	205,633
Other occupancy	689,544	47,042	5,040	19,086	760,712	831,606
Equipment leases and maintenance	67,917	44,460	7,663	21,842	141,882	153,236
Printing, advertising and subscriptions	20,980	14,628	490	6,543	42,641	43,038
Agency vehicles and travel	239,611	59,661	42,544	31,924	373,740	317,644
Conferences, conventions and meetings	-	2,565	-	16,783	19,348	18,845
Specific assistance-community	12,165	405,954	2,500	21,846	442,465	208,525
Membership dues and support payments	70,479	29,186	16,591	5,777	122,033	114,472
Bank service charges	116,334	-	-	11,807	128,141	107,537
Awards and grants	-	-	-	9,568	9,568	7,244
Miscellaneous	(83)	10,448	746	33,008	44,119	56,749
Total other expenses before depreciation	2,281,822	1,325,970	205,225	679,659	4,492,676	3,814,816
Total expenses before depreciation	6,061,408	3,215,998	1,569,979	1,391,175	12,238,560	10,517,846
Depreciation	339,081	57,119	28,899	21,641	446,740	399,968
Total expenses	\$ 6,400,489	\$ 3,273,117	\$ 1,598,878	\$ 1,412,816	\$ 12,685,300	\$ 10,917,814

#### **STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS**

#### FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

	2023 Total	2022 Summary Total
Cash flows from operating activities:		
Change in net assets	\$ 423,903	\$ 1,047,469
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net		
cash provided by operating activities:		
Net realized (gain) on investments	(4,888)	(11,176)
Net unrealized (gain) loss on investments	(210,805)	289,464
Loss on disposal of fixed assets	17,504	17,334
Depreciation	446,740	399,968
Amortization	5,701	15,837
Change in operating assets and liabilities:		
Receivables	12,263	(172,297)
Accounts receivable - ERTC	919,015	(919,015)
Inventory	(2,144)	(67,215)
Prepaid expenses	(51,758)	(4,387)
Other assets	-	9,169
Accounts payable	140,065	(37,735)
Sales tax payable	1,980	2,856
Accrued payroll and withholdings	37,603	24,443
Other payables	12,292	(98,552)
Operating lease asset and liability	5,936	4,468
Total adjustments	1,329,504	(546,838)
Net cash provided by operating activities	1,753,407	500,631
Cash flows from investing activities:		
Capital purchases and improvements	(516,617)	(623,776)
Net (purchase) of investments	(1,732,112)	(911)
Change in beneficial interest in assets of foundation	14,188	13,701
Decrease in investment in partnership	132	413
Net cash (used) by investing activities	(2,234,409)	(610,573)
Cash flows from financing activities:		
Borrowings	-	566,957
Payments on debt	(227,036)	(363,438)
.  Net cash (used) provided by financing activities	(227,036)	203,519
Net (decrease) increase in cash	(708,038)	93,577
Cash at beginning of the year	1,717,424	1,623,847
Cash at end of the year	\$ 1,009,386	\$ 1,717,424
Cash paid during the year for interest	\$ 126,083	\$ 314,787
cash paid during the year for interest	۲۷٬۰۵۵	ر المبارك ب المبارك ب

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### **DECEMBER 31, 2023**

#### 1. Nature of Business

Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc. ("Goodwill") is a nonprofit, privately supported public service organization. Revenues are derived primarily from the following:

- (a) Sales of used clothing and other household materials donated by the public and refurbished by employees who have disabilities and/or are disadvantaged.
- (b) Salvage sales.
- (c) Sub-contract work for various types of companies by employees who have disabilities and/or are disadvantaged.
- (d) Vocational rehabilitation fees and grant funding through the State of Louisiana and other local government agencies.
- (e) The Community Foundation of North Louisiana.
- (f) Miscellaneous contributions.

Goodwill provides work opportunities and training for people who have disabilities and/or are disadvantaged, utilizing sales of reconditioned goods and contracted services to pay their wages.

#### 2. Significant Accounting Policies

Following is a summary of significant policies by Goodwill:

#### (a) Financial Statement Presentation:

Goodwill reports information regarding its financial position and activities based on the absence or existence of donor-imposed restrictions, as follows:

*Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions* - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. Some net assets without donor restrictions may be designated by the Board for specific purposes.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met by actions of Goodwill, and/or by the passage of time. Also included are net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently by Goodwill. Generally, donors permit all or part of the income earned on these assets to be used for general or specific purposes.

#### (b) Contributions:

Contributions received are recorded based on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. Contributions consist mainly of donated goods and Workforce Development grants.

#### (c) Promises to Give:

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to Goodwill that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### **DECEMBER 31, 2023**

donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. Conditional contributions, which are those with a measurable performance barrier and a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met.

Goodwill uses the allowance method to determine uncollectible unconditional promises receivable when material. The allowance is based on prior years' experience and management's analysis of specific promises made.

#### (d) Contributed Goods and Services:

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the value of contributed services meeting the requirements for recognition in the financial statements was not material. Goods purchased for resale and donated goods are stated at the lower of cost or market on the first-in, first-out basis.

#### (e) Revenue and Revenue Recognition:

Goodwill recognizes sales of goods at the time the sale is made, which is when control of the goods sold passes to the customer and satisfies Goodwill's performance obligation. Returns are not allowed, but exchanges of equal value occur.

Revenues from contract services, which include both Federal and state-sourced contracts, derive from the provision of specific services that customarily include janitorial, groundskeeping, and switchboard. The contracts generally are for one year, with automatic renewals that allow termination notice by either party without penalty. Performance obligations under these contracts, which consist of a series of distinct promises that generally have the same pattern of transfer on a monthly basis, are satisfied over time as the service is provided.

Certain training and other grants consist of fee for services rendered arrangements that specify performance measures to be met. The performance obligations under these grants are satisfied upon completion of each specific measure, at which point the related revenue is recognized and billed.

#### (f) Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the valuation of donated goods, estimated fair values of investment securities, and the estimated values of lease obligations and related right of use assets.

#### (g) Investments:

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities are reported in the statement of financial position at their fair values. Fair values for marketable securities are based on quoted market prices. Gains and losses on the sale of marketable securities are determined using the specific identification method. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### **DECEMBER 31, 2023**

#### (h) Trade Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses:

Trade receivables are carried at their net realizable value. The Organization extends credit to its customers in the normal course of business and performs ongoing credit evaluation of such customers. On a periodic basis, management evaluates its accounts receivable and determines whether to provide an allowance or if accounts should be written off based on a past history of write-offs and collections, adjusted for current conditions and reasonable, supportable forecasts of future losses. A receivable is considered past due if the Organization has not received payments in accordance with contractual terms. No allowance was needed at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

#### (i) Land, Buildings and Equipment:

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as support without donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be maintained, Goodwill reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service as instructed by the donor. Goodwill reclassifies net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method. Buildings are assigned useful lives of forty years. Furniture and equipment generally are assigned ten-year useful lives and vehicles are assigned three- to five-year useful lives. Goodwill uses a capitalization policy of \$1,000 for fixed asset acquisitions, excluding personal computers and laptops which are expensed, because most are reimbursed under various grants.

#### (j) Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, Goodwill considers all cash on hand and demand deposits with financial institutions to be cash equivalents. Certain demand deposits include amounts that are "swept" overnight into daily investments in U.S. Treasury or Agency Securities.

#### (k) Prior Year Financial Information:

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with Goodwill's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022. Certain amounts for the prior year may have been reclassified to conform to the current-year presentation.

#### (I) Advertising Costs:

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Such costs amounted to \$25,501 and \$22,461 for 2023 and 2022.

#### (m) Income Taxes:

As a nonprofit, privately supported organization, Goodwill is generally exempt from income taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code but must file an annual return

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### **DECEMBER 31, 2023**

with the Internal Revenue Service that contains information on its financial operations. Goodwill is required to review various tax positions it has taken with respect to its exempt status and determine whether in fact it continues to qualify as a tax-exempt entity. It must also consider whether it has nexus in jurisdictions in which it has income and whether a tax return is required in those jurisdictions. In addition, as a tax-exempt entity, Goodwill must assess whether it has any tax positions associated with unrelated business income subject to income tax. Goodwill does not expect any of these tax positions to change significantly over the next twelve months. Any penalties related to late filing or other requirements would be recognized as penalties expense in Goodwill's accounting records.

Goodwill is required to file U.S. federal Form 990 for informational purposes. Its federal income tax returns for the tax years 2020 and beyond remain subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service.

#### (n) Beneficial Interest in Assets of Foundation:

Any transfers by Goodwill of its own funds to the Community Foundation of North Louisiana, specifying itself as the beneficiary, are accounted for as an asset in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

#### (o) Leases:

Goodwill determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception.

Leases are included in right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position. ROU assets and lease liabilities reflect the present value of the future minimum lease payments over the lease term, and ROU assets also may include prepaid or accrued rent. Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Goodwill does not report ROU assets and leases liabilities for its short-term leases (leases with a term of 12 months or less), if any. Instead, the lease payments of those leases are reported as lease expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

#### (p) Functional Expenses:

Goodwill charges expenses to applicable functions (departments) as incurred. Expenses are allocated to departments based upon square footage occupied. Some allocations, such as dues paid to Goodwill Industries International, are made annually based upon revenue. Goodwill does not allocate the management and general expenses related to accounting, human resources, IT services, and executive leadership.

#### (q) Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets:

Goodwill strives to maintain liquid financial assets sufficient to meet its general operating expenditures. At December 31, 2023, Goodwill attempts to retain approximately two months of expenses (less depreciation) in liquid assets. Accounts receivable are primarily from governmental agencies and are managed closely to ensure they are being paid promptly in order to provide for payment of accounts payable.

Goodwill has \$4,383,093 of financial assets available within one year of the balance sheet date, comprised of cash of \$944,094, receivables of \$682,604, and short term investments of \$2,756,395. None of these financial assets is subject to donor restrictions or contractual restrictions that make them unavailable within one year.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### **DECEMBER 31, 2023**

#### (r) Recently Adopted Accounting Standards:

On January 1, 2023, Goodwill adopted ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. Topic 326 requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date to be based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on Goodwill's financial statements.

#### 3. Restrictions on Assets

Included in net assets with donor restrictions are various grants received by Goodwill with use restrictions. These restrictions will expire as Goodwill utilizes these funds for their intended purposes over the terms of the grants. Also included in net assets with donor restrictions are endowments received by Goodwill. These endowment assets are held by the Community Foundation of North Louisiana, as described in Note 15.

#### 4. Investments

Investments at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are summarized as follows:

				2023		
					Ur	realized
			A	oproximate	Apı	preciation
	_	Cost	_	Fair Value	(De <sub>l</sub>	preciation)
U.S. Treasury and Agency debt securities Corporate equity securities & mutual funds	\$	1,474,187 840,019	\$	1,493,989 934,959	\$	19,802 94,940
Cash and equivalents		327,447		327,447		-
	\$	2,641,653	\$	2,756,395	\$	114,742
				2022		
					Uı	nrealized
			Α	pproximate	Ар	preciation
		Cost		Fair Value	(De	preciation)
U.S. Treasury and Agency debt securities Corporate equity securities & mutual funds Cash and equivalents	\$	73,920 823,344 12,278	\$	74,675 758,210 12,278	\$	755 (65,134) -
	\$	909,542	\$	845,163	\$	(64,379)

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### **DECEMBER 31, 2023**

A summary of investment return for each year follows:

				2023		
	Wit	hout Donor	Wi	th Donor		
	Re	estrictions	Re	strictions		Total
Net interest income	\$	81,139	\$	2,830	\$	83,969
Net realized gain		-		4,888		4,888
Net unrealized gain		179,120		31,685		210,805
	\$	260,259	\$	39,403	\$	299,662
				2022		
	Wit	hout Donor	Wi	th Donor		
	Re	estrictions	Restrictions		Total	
Net interest income	\$	4,110	\$	2,637	\$	6,747
Net realized gain		793		10,383		11,176
Net unrealized (loss)		(231,927)		(57,537)		(289,464)
	\$	(227,024)	\$	(44,517)	\$	(271,541)

#### 5. <u>Land, Building, and Equipment</u>

Fixed assets and related accumulated depreciation at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

		2023	2022
Buildings and improvements	\$	11,632,226	\$ 11,360,566
Equipment		1,490,514	1,763,794
Vehicles		256,889	147,302
Total depreciable assets		13,379,629	13,271,662
Accumulated depreciation		(7,613,708)	(7,558,114)
Book value of depreciable assets		5,765,921	5,713,548
Land		3,476,254	3,476,254
Book value of fixed assets	\$	9,242,175	\$ 9,189,802
	_		

#### 6. <u>Employee Benefits Plan</u>

Goodwill has available to its employees a section 403(b) Thrift defined contribution retirement plan which is administered by Mutual of America. The employees may, at their option, elect to make contributions to the tax deferred plan. Goodwill may elect, but is not obligated, to make additional discretionary contributions to the plan; effective March 1, 2022 it began to match 50% of employee contributions up to 5% of employee wages. Such contributions amounted to \$26,211 for 2023 and \$21,620 for 2022.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### **DECEMBER 31, 2023**

#### 7. <u>Leases</u>

Goodwill leases various facilities to serve as retail store outlets for its household goods and for other purposes. It also leases several trucks. None of the leases meets the criteria to be classified as finance leases and therefore all are accounted for as operating leases. Goodwill has lease agreements for store locations in West Monroe, Shreve City, Natchitoches, and Haughton; workforce development locations in Alexandria and Monroe; and a warehouse location in Shreveport. Goodwill maintains eight operating leases for its operations in North Louisiana. The terms of the operating leases range from two years to ten years. Goodwill has made an accounting policy election to use risk free rates in lieu of incremental borrowing rates to discount the future lease payments.

Operating lease expense associated with the facilities leases amounted to \$518,338 and \$496,058 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Operating lease expense associated with the trucks amounted to \$82,978 and \$82,536 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The following table provides quantitative information concerning Goodwill's leases.

	 2023	2022
Total lease expense	\$ 601,316	\$ 578,594
Other information		
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities		
Operating cash flows from operating leases	\$ 593,379	\$ 574,127
ROU assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities	\$ 288,554	\$2,436,118
Weighted-average remaining lease term in years for operating leases	5.03	5.17
Weighted-average discount rate for operating leases (%)	1.75%	1.34%

Future maturities of lease liabilities for the next five years and in the aggregate are as follows:

	Operating Leases
2024	\$ 559,717
2025	463,226
2026	166,535
2027	109,829
2028	71,890
Thereafter	319,277
Total undiscounted cash flows	1,690,474
Less: present value discount	(76,216)
Total lease liabilities recognized in the balance sheet	\$ 1,614,258
•	

#### 8. Commitments

Goodwill is obligated to provide annual supplemental medical insurance benefits up to a maximum limit each to its President/CEO Emeritus and his spouse for the remainder of their lives, effective with his retirement on June 30, 2012. Total payments under this commitment amounted to \$9,443 for 2023 and \$8,867 for 2022.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### **DECEMBER 31, 2023**

#### 9. Long-Term Debt

Listed below is a schedule of long-term debt at December 31, 2023 and 2022:

Citizens National Bank, N.A.  Line of credit for \$225,000; interest at Wall Street Journal prime (8.50% at 12-31- 23) plus. 250 percentage points, due monthly; principal and remaining unpaid amounts due June 2026 or at lender demand; secured by stores in Shreveport, Bossier City, Alexandria, and Pineville, Louisiana.  Capital One, N.A.  Line of credit for \$225,000; interest at Wall Street Journal prime (8.50% at 12-31- 23) due monthly; principal and remaining unpaid items due each June 13 at lender demand; unsecured  Small Business Administration  Economic Injury Disaster Loan for \$500,000 for working capital; payable \$2,136 per month commencing October 2022 for thirty years; interest at 2.75%; secured by all corporate tangible and intangible personal property.  500,000  Various  Loans for equipment and vehicles; interest at 5.42%-7.00%; monthly payments varying from \$219 to \$1,466; original maturities vary from 24 to 60 months; secured by the equipment and vehicles financed.  4,968  Total debt Less unamortized debt issuance costs  (47,989)	2022	2023	Terms	Due To
Wall Street Journal prime (8.50% at 12-31-23) plus .250 percentage points, due monthly; principal and remaining unpaid amounts due June 2026 or at lender demand; secured by stores in Shreveport, Bossier City, Alexandria, and Pineville, Louisiana.  Capital One, N.A.  Line of credit for \$225,000; interest at Wall Street Journal prime (8.50% at 12-31-23) due monthly; principal and remaining unpaid items due each June 13 at lender demand; unsecured  Small Business Administration  Economic Injury Disaster Loan for \$500,000 for working capital; payable \$2,136 per month commencing October 2022 for thirty years; interest at 2.75%; secured by all corporate tangible and intangible personal property.  500,000  Various  Loans for equipment and vehicles; interest at 5.42%-7.00%; monthly payments varying from \$219 to \$1,466; original maturities vary from 24 to 60 months; secured by the equipment and vehicles financed.  4,968  Total debt  Less unamortized debt issuance costs  (47,989)	4,194,468	\$ 3,978,348	and fund improvements to properties pledged, payable \$32,406 per month through May 2027 including interest at 4.16%. Additional payments through May 2032 at amount sufficient to amortize principal balance at variable interest rate to be determined at Interest Adjustment Date. Secured by stores in Shreveport, Bossier City, Alexandria, and Pineville,	Citizens National Bank, N.A.
Wall Street Journal prime (8.50% at 12-31-23) due monthly; principal and remaining unpaid items due each June 13 at lender demand; unsecured  Small Business Administration  Economic Injury Disaster Loan for \$500,000 for working capital; payable \$2,136 per month commencing October 2022 for thirty years; interest at 2.75%; secured by all corporate tangible and intangible personal property.  500,000  Various  Loans for equipment and vehicles; interest at 5.42%-7.00%; monthly payments varying from \$219 to \$1,466; original maturities vary from 24 to 60 months; secured by the equipment and vehicles financed.  4,968  Total debt  Less unamortized debt issuance costs  (47,989)	_	_	Wall Street Journal prime (8.50% at 12-31-23) plus .250 percentage points, due monthly; principal and remaining unpaid amounts due June 2026 or at lender demand; secured by stores in Shreveport, Bossier City, Alexandria, and Pineville,	Citizens National Bank, N.A.
Economic Injury Disaster Loan for \$500,000 for working capital; payable \$2,136 per month commencing October 2022 for thirty years; interest at 2.75%; secured by all corporate tangible and intangible personal property.  500,000  Various  Loans for equipment and vehicles; interest at 5.42%-7.00%; monthly payments varying from \$219 to \$1,466; original maturities vary from 24 to 60 months; secured by the equipment and vehicles financed.  4,968  Total debt  Less unamortized debt issuance costs	-	-	Wall Street Journal prime (8.50% at 12-31-23) due monthly; principal and remaining unpaid items due each June 13 at lender	Capital One, N.A.
\$500,000 for working capital; payable \$2,136 per month commencing October 2022 for thirty years; interest at 2.75%; secured by all corporate tangible and intangible personal property.  500,000  Various  Loans for equipment and vehicles; interest at 5.42%-7.00%; monthly payments varying from \$219 to \$1,466; original maturities vary from 24 to 60 months; secured by the equipment and vehicles financed.  4,968  Total debt Less unamortized debt issuance costs				Small Business Administration
interest at 5.42%-7.00%; monthly payments varying from \$219 to \$1,466; original maturities vary from 24 to 60 months; secured by the equipment and vehicles financed.  4,968  Total debt Less unamortized debt issuance costs	500,000	500,000	\$500,000 for working capital; payable \$2,136 per month commencing October 2022 for thirty years; interest at 2.75%; secured by all corporate tangible and	
Total debt 4,483,316 Less unamortized debt issuance costs (47,989)	45.00	1050	interest at 5.42%-7.00%; monthly payments varying from \$219 to \$1,466; original maturities vary from 24 to 60 months; secured by the equipment and	Various
Less unamortized debt issuance costs (47,989)	15,884		verneres infanceu.	Total dobt
	4,710,352 (53,690)		e costs	
Total acbt, net	4,656,662	\$ 4,435,327		Total debt, net
<u> </u>	227.026			ŕ
	227,036 4,483,316	. ,		
Portion classified as long-term 4,253,407  Total debt \$ 4,483,316 \$	4,710,352			

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### **DECEMBER 31, 2023**

Maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2023 for the next five years are as follows:

2024	\$	229,909
2025		241,252
2026		260,285
2027		271,250
2028		282,324
Thereafter	<u> </u>	3,198,296
	\$	4,483,316

The approximate book value of collateralized fixed assets at December 31, 2023 was \$8,904,665.

Total interest expense for all debt was \$186,181 and \$225,122 for 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The noncash amount of the refinancing of the Mooring Capital debt to Citizens National Bank in 2022 was \$3,748,859.

#### 10. **Donated Goods**

Effective January 1, 1996, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, Goodwill began recognizing donated goods as revenue when received. During 2023 and 2022, contributed merchandise with an approximate fair value of \$3,156,000 and \$3,171,000, respectively, was recognized as contribution revenue. This donated-goods merchandise requires program-related expenses and processes that are accomplished by people with disabilities and other disadvantaging conditions before it reaches the point of sale. The value of donated goods inventory and donated goods revenue is dependent upon the level of sales of donated goods and allocation estimates of processing costs. Such values are estimated using a general calculation model developed by Goodwill Industries International, Inc. These estimates are periodically reviewed and revised by management. Donated goods included in inventory amounted to approximately \$218,128 and \$219,878 at December 31, 2023 and 2022.

#### 11. Conditional Promises

Conditional promises consist of the unfunded portions of approved governmental awards, either currently in effect or approved for commencement after December 31, 2023. Future funding of such awards is conditioned upon Goodwill's operation of certain programs, incurrence of certain costs, and possibly meeting certain matching requirements. Because such awards represent conditional promises to Goodwill, they have not been recognized in the financial statements at December 31, 2023. Such conditional promises amounted to approximately \$4,585,000 at December 31, 2023.

#### 12. Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject Goodwill to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash, investments, and receivables. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to receivables are limited since most of these amounts are due from governmental agencies and private businesses under grants or fee for service arrangements. Goodwill maintains cash balances at several financial institutions. At December 31, 2023, total cash held at financial institutions was \$915,527, \$418,866 of which is over the FDIC-insured limits. Substantial investment amounts, including certain mutual funds, are invested in securities of the federal government or its agencies.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### **DECEMBER 31, 2023**

However, approximately \$935,000 in corporate debt securities, corporate equity securities, and various equity mutual funds at December 31, 2023, are dependent solely upon the faith and credit of the corporate issuer. Goodwill monitors the credit worthiness of these institutions and believes the credit risk to be minimal.

#### 13. Fundraising Expenses

Direct fundraising expenses amounted to approximately \$33,967 for 2023 and \$30,351 for 2022.

#### 14. Fair Value Measurements

The following table presents Goodwill's fair value hierarchy for assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2023 and 2022:

Process in Other Significant Active Observable Unobservable	
Active Observable Unobservable	
Active Observable Offobservable	
Markets for Inputs Inputs	
(Level 1)(Level 2)(Level 3) V	alue
December 31, 2023: Investments: U.S Treasury and Agency	
	493,989
	934,959
Cash and equivalents 327,447	327,447
•	756,395
<u> </u>	
Donated goods inventory \$ - \$ - \$ 218,128 \$	218,128
Quoted Significant Process in Other Significant Active Observable Unobservable Markets for Inputs Inputs (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) V	alue
December 31, 2022: Investments:	
U.S Treasury and Agency	
	74,675
	74,073
debt securities \$ 74,675 \$ - \$ - \$	
Corporate equity securities 758,210	
Corporate equity securities 758,210 Cash and equivalents 12,278	12,278
Corporate equity securities 758,210 Cash and equivalents 12,278	

Fair values for most investments are determined by reference to quoted market prices generated by market transactions (Level 1). Fair values for other investments are determined by reference to net asset values that are not current. The fair value of donated goods inventory is estimated based on a methodology using annual processing costs and inventory turnover factors applied to the retail sales value of the goods.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### **DECEMBER 31, 2023**

Nonfinancial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis, using significant unobservable inputs, changed in value as follows:

Donated Goods Inventory	2023		2022	
Beginning balance	\$	219,878	\$	149,813
Change in value from sales and donations		(1,750)		70,065
Ending balance	\$	218,128	\$	219,878

Unobservable inputs utilized include the sales value of the donated goods applied to an industry-accepted computational model that adjusts the value of those monthly sales, using inventory turnover rates and costs incurred in processing the goods sold.

#### 15. Beneficial Interest in Assets of Foundation

Goodwill established an endowment fund, the income distribution of which is designated by Goodwill to help fund the cost of placement programs. Goodwill transferred control of this endowment fund in 2008 to the Community Foundation of North Louisiana. Under the terms of the agreement, variance power and legal ownership of the funds rest with the Foundation, and net investment income and capital appreciation/depreciation accumulate in the endowment fund. The Foundation is obligated to distribute 4% of the average market value of the fund to Goodwill annually, provided the average market value is greater than the amount contributed to the fund.

Activity of this beneficial interest is summarized as follows:

		2023	2022
	<u> </u>		
Beginning balance, endowment fund	\$	428,336 \$	489,191
Net interest income		7,179	6,863
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)		36,573	(47,154)
Administrative fees		(4,349)	(4,226)
Distributions to Goodwill		(17,018)	(16,338)
Ending balance, endowment fund	\$	450,721 \$	428,336

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

#### **DECEMBER 31, 2023**

#### 16. Revenue From Contracts and Related Receivables

Disaggregated revenue from contracts with customers and related receivables follows:

	2023	2022	
Revenue from Contracts with Customers	 	-	
Sales of goods:			
Purchased new	\$ 75,291	\$ 69,302	
Donated	4,872,650	4,199,099	)
Contract services	1,944,907	1,807,287	,
Accounts Receivable from Contracts with Customers			
Sales of goods	1,646	691	
Contract services	173,878	174,392	_

#### 17. Employee Retention Tax Credit (ERTC)

Management claimed the ERTC during 2022 and recorded the credit in the amount of \$919,015 in other receivables and in other revenue; the ERTC was received in 2023. Laws and regulations concerning the ERTC are complex and subject to varying interpretations; therefore, claims made under the CARES Act may be subject to retroactive audit and review. There can be no assurance that regulatory authorities will not challenge Goodwill's claim to the ERTC, and it is not possible to determine the impact (if any) this would have upon Goodwill at this time.

#### 18. Uncertainties

From time to time, Goodwill may be a defendant in other legal actions arising from normal business activities. Management believes such actions are without merit or that the ultimate liability resulting from them will not materially affect Goodwill's financial position.

#### 19. Subsequent Events

Goodwill is required to evaluate events or transactions that may occur after the balance sheet date for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Goodwill performed such an evaluation through June 27, 2024, the date which the financial statements were available to be issued and noted no such subsequent events.



# SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Agency Head: David Tinkis	
Salary	\$157,299
Bonus	4,845
Benefits-insurance-health	15,936
Benefits-insurance-life, disability, accidental	1,628
Car allowance	4,426
Travel	7,831
Conferences	11,878





## REGIONS TOWER 333 TEXAS STREET, SUITE 1525 | SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 71101 318.429.1525 (P) | 318.429.2124 (F)

The Board of Directors Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc. Shreveport, Louisiana

# Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc., which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 27, 2024.

#### **Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Goodwill's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Goodwill's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Goodwill's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the second paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

#### **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Goodwill's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an

objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

#### **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion of the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Shreveport, Louisiana June 27, 2024

Heard, Mc Elroy ! Westal, LLC

#### **SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS**

#### FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

#### A. Summary of Audit Results

- 1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc.
- 2. No material weaknesses or significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported.
- 3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc. were disclosed during the audit.

#### B. Findings - Financial Statement Audit

None

# GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF NORTH LOUISIANA, INC. SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

There were no findings from the prior year.	

## **Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc.**

Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Report

Year Ended December 31, 2023







# REGIONS TOWER 333 TEXAS STREET, SUITE 1525 I SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 71101 318.429.1525 (P) I 318.429.2124 (F)

Board of Directors Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc. Shreveport, Louisiana

Louisiana Legislative Auditor Baton Rouge, Louisiana

## INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023. Management of Goodwill Industries of North Louisiana, Inc. (Goodwill) is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. These Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures were applied only to Goodwill's Workforce Development control and compliance areas, as these are the areas that involve the use of public monies.

Goodwill has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes.

The procedures and associated findings are as follows:

#### **Written Policies and Procedures**

- Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations:
  - a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget.
    - The entity has an adequate policy regarding budgeting.
  - b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes.
    - The entity has an adequate policy regarding purchasing.
  - c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving.
    - The entity has an adequate policy regarding disbursements.

d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation).

The entity has an adequate policy regarding receipts/collections.

e) **Payroll/Personnel**, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for employee rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules.

The entity has an adequate policy regarding payroll/personnel.

f) *Contracting*, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process.

Exception: Although the entity has in place a Compliance Policy on Contractual Relations, it does not specifically address the types of services requiring written contracts nor does it include the approval process for contracts.

Management's Response: Goodwill will update its policy to include the Board Resolution that states that only the CEO can sign contracts on behalf of the entity, and also will update the types of services requiring written contracts.

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases)

The entity has an adequate policy regarding credit cards.

h) *Travel and expense reimbursement*, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers.

Exception: Although the entity has in place a Reimbursable Expenses Policy, it does not specifically address the dollar thresholds by category of expense.

Management's Response: Goodwill will update its policy to incorporate the limitations established by the Louisiana Travel Regulations, and to provide for approval by the employee's supervisor for travel not covered by the state regulations.

i) *Ethics*, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statutes 42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy.

The entity as a nonprofit typically is not subject to the State of Louisiana Code of Ethics; however, it is a party to certain grant agreements that apply this requirement contractually.

The entity has an adequate policy regarding ethics.

j) **Debt Service**, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements.

Not applicable to Goodwill as a non-profit organization.

k) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event.

The entity has an adequate policy regarding information technology disaster recovery/business continuity.

I) **Prevention of Sexual Harassment**, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting.

The entity as a nonprofit typically is not subject to the requirements of prevention of sexual harassment; however, it is a party to certain grant agreements that apply this requirement contractually.

Exception: Although the entity has a policy that deals with certain elements of prevention of sexual harassment, the policy does not address requirements for annual employee training and annual reporting.

Management's Response: Goodwill will include in its policy the requirement for training when adding new employees and annually thereafter, and for annual reporting.

#### **Board or Finance Committee**

- 2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and:
  - a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document.
    - The board and executive committee met with a quorum on a frequency in accordance with the entity's bylaws.
  - b) For those entities reporting on the nonprofit accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or included financial activity relating to public funds if those public funds comprised more than 10% of the entity's collections during the fiscal period.
    - The minutes referenced monthly financial statements that included activity relating to public funds.
  - c) Observe whether the board/finance committee received written updates of the progress of resolving audit finding(s), according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting until the findings are considered fully resolved.

Not applicable; no audit findings were identified.

#### **Bank Reconciliations**

3. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all

accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that:

- a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged);
  - Bank reconciliations were prepared for each account selected and included evidence of having been prepared within 2 months of the related statement closing date.
- b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management or a board member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation within one month of the date the reconciliation was prepared (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and
  - Bank reconciliations evidenced review by an independent member of management.
- c) Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable.
  - No reconciliation contained reconciling items outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date.

#### Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers)

- 4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete.
  - Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5).
  - A listing of deposit sites was obtained from management.
- 5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that:
  - a) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers.
    - Each employee responsible for collecting cash does not share the cash drawer with another employee.
  - b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for preparing/making bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation (e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit.
    - Each employee responsible for collecting cash does not prepare or make the related bank deposit.
  - c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not also responsible for posting collection entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit.
    - Each employee responsible for collecting cash does not post collection entries to the general or subsidiary ledgers.

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or custodial fund additions, is (are) not also responsible for collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the reconciliation.

The employee responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general or subsidiary ledgers is not responsible for collecting cash.

Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft was in force during the fiscal period.

The entity is covered for theft under an insurance policy that was in effect during the fiscal period.

- 7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank Reconciliation procedure #3 (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and:
  - a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered.

No exceptions.

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection documentation to the deposit slip.

No exceptions.

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement.

No exceptions.

d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less than \$100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer).

No exceptions.

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger.

No exceptions.

## Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, and petty cash purchases)

- 8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5).
  - A listing of locations was obtained from management.
- 9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that:
  - a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and placing an order/making the purchase.

- An employee can initiate a purchase request, which is then approved by a supervisor or department head.
- b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors.
  - The Accountant processes vendor payments and payments are approved by any chief or, if over \$1,000, by the CEO.
- c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor files unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files.
  - The Accountant has the ability to modify/add vendor files; however, he does not process payments.
- d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments.
  - Almost all checks are prepared and mailed by a third-party vendor which has no approval authority over payment processing. In the rare instances that checks are prepared at the entity, accounting staff is responsible for mailing.
- e) Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement (release) of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds transfer (ETF), wire transfer, or some other electronic means.
  - All wire disbursements of funds are approved by the CEO for 3<sup>rd</sup> party accounts payable payments, and ACH payments for other than insurance and payroll-related transactions, which are approved by the CFO.
- 10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction and:
  - a) Observe whether the disbursement, whether by paper or electronic means, matched the related original invoice and supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included on the invoice were received by the entity.
    - For all selections, no exceptions noted.
  - b) Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable.
    - For all selections, no exceptions noted.
- 11. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations procedure 3, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all electronic disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) approved by the required number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: If no electronic payments were made from the main operating account during the month selected the practitioner should select an alternative month and/or account for testing that does include electronic disbursements.

For all selections, no exceptions noted.

#### Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards

- 12. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and purchase cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete.
  - A listing of locations was obtained from management.
- 13. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement). Obtain supporting documentation, and:
  - a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved), by someone other than the authorized card holder.
    - Someone other than the cardholder approved, in writing, all five cards selected.
  - b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements.
    - Finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements.
- 14. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #13 above, excluding fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each card should have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and observe whether management had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is subject to increased scrutiny.

The entity's transactions were supported, without exception, by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies exactly what was purchased, and (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose. No transactions selected included meal charges.

#### Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions)

- 15. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements and obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected:
  - a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration (www.gsa.gov).
    - No exceptions noted.
  - b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased.
    - No exceptions noted.

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and Procedures procedure #1.h).

No exceptions noted.

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the person receiving reimbursement.

No exceptions noted.

#### **Contracts**

- 16. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and:
  - a) Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law.
    - No contract selected was subject to the Louisiana Public Bid Law.
  - b) Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter).
    - All contracts selected received appropriate approvals when applicable.
  - c) If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terms provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the contract terms (e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, the documented approval); and
    - All contract amendments were made in accordance with original contract terms when applicable.
  - d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract.

No exceptions to procedure noted.

#### Payroll and Personnel

17. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files.

Obtained listing from Management and agreed selected employees' salaries and pay rates without exception.

- 18. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected under procedure #17 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and:
  - a) Observe that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory).
    - No exceptions noted.
  - b) Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or officials.
    - No exceptions noted.
  - c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's cumulative leave records.
    - Records covering accrued and used leave appear reasonable.
  - d) Observe that the rate paid to the employees or officials agrees to the authorized salary/pay rate found within the personnel file.
    - No exceptions noted.
- 19. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or officials and obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination payment calculations and the entity policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the employee's or official's cumulate leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee or official's authorized pay rates in the employee or official's personnel files, and agree the termination payment to entity policy.
  - Management represented that there were no termination payments in the period covered.
- 20. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines.
  - Management's representation was obtained covering these statements.

#### **Ethics**

- 21. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #17 under "Payroll and Personnel" above, obtain ethics documentation from management, and:
  - a. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of ethics training during the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:1170.
    - The entity as a nonprofit typically is not subject to the State of Louisiana Code of Ethics; however, it is a party to certain grant agreements that apply this requirement contractually. Training is completed for all new hires annually and every three years thereafter.
  - b. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee and official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, as applicable.
    - Not applicable; no changes in ethics policy were made during the fiscal period.

22. Inquire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S. 42:1170.

The entity appointed its Chief Program Officer as the ethics designee in compliance with R.S. 42:1170.

#### **Debt Service**

Not applicable since the entity is a nonprofit.

#### **Fraud Notice**

- 23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled as required by R.S. 24:523.
  - N/A no misappropriations of public funds were identified during the fiscal period.
- 24. Observe that the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds.

No exceptions noted.

#### Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity

- 25. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report "We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management."
  - a. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical data (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for backing up critical data) and observe that such backup (a) occurred within the past week, (b) was not stored on the entity's local server or network, and (c) was encrypted.
    - We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.
  - b. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that its backups can be restored (if there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months.
    - We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.
  - c. Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are currently supported by the vendor.
    - We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.
- 26. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using the list of terminated employees obtained in Procedure #19. Observe evidence that the selected terminated employees have been removed or disabled from the network.

Exception: All five terminated employees selected had not been removed or disabled from the network because the entity's contract IT administrator was not notified of the employee termination.

Management's Response: Goodwill will add its contractual IT Administrator to the distribution list of terminated employees provided by Human Resources so that terminated employees can be removed from network access.

- 27. Using the 5 randomly selected employees from Payroll and Personnel Procedure #17, obtain cyber security training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation demonstrates that the following employees with access to the agency's information technology assets have completed cybersecurity training as required by R.S. 42:1267 in accordance with the following requirements:
  - Hired before June 9, 2020-completed the training.
  - Hired on or after June 9, 2020-completed the training within 30 days of initial service or employment.

No exceptions noted.

#### **Prevention of Sexual Harassment**

28. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel Procedure #17, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during the calendar year as required by R.S 42:343.

No exceptions noted.

29. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website).

No exceptions noted.

- 30. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report was dated on or before February 1, and observe that the report includes the applicable requirements of R.S 42:344:
  - Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have competed the training requirements;
  - Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency;
  - Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred;
  - Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or corrective action; and
  - Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint.

No exceptions noted.

We were engaged by Goodwill to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of *Government Auditing Standards*. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are required to be independent of Goodwill and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement.

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document.

Heland, Mc Elvoy ! Westal, LL C Shreveport, Louisiana

June 27, 2024